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Our Company delivered another profitable year in 2011 as we
continued offering customers fashionable products and providing
best-in-class service. The source of both our past accomplishments
and the achievement of our future goals is the dedication
demonstrated daily by Havertys employees. Every member of our
team understands the personal nature of home furnishings and
appreciates great service because very simply, we are customers
too. The over 3,000 associates throughout our organization are
committed to growing our business and providing an inspiring
shopping experience for each Havertys customer.

Sales for 2011 were up slightly over 2010 with stronger performance in the fourth quarter
providing momentum into 2012. The appeal of higher price point products resulted in a
higher average ticket for 2011 which aided sales and gross profit growth. The modest sales
gains did not outpace planned spending increases in advertising and compensation, and
additional delivery expenses and higher fuel costs kept pre-tax profits below the 2010 level.
The net income of $15.5 million, or $0.73 per share, for 2011 was an increase of $7.0 million,
or $0.32 per share. Net income included a favorable, non-cash special item related to deferred
income taxes of $14.1 million, or $0.64 per share. We marked anocther successful year in

the effort to strengthen our balance sheet. We preserved a strong cash position and held
funded debt to zero, utilized excess cash to fund projects reducing operating expenses,

and renewed our credit agreement. The new agreement provides $50.0 million of availability
through mid 2016 at significantly reduced costs. We are building on this strong foundation

in 2012 and the actions we are taking to increase sales and profitability will further strengthen

our sohid financial position.

" BTRAYEG

Significant advances were made by our teams during 2011 on a number of important initiatives:

Lo

enhancing the customer experience, emphasizing our assortment of “better” price point

merchandise and strengthening the Havertys brand.

We are in the middle of our plan to update and dramatically enhance our store interiors.

This multi-year program will invest over $15.5 million to bring our stores up to the highest
display standards in the industry. The store remaodeling project -— “Bright inspirations” — gives
our showrocoms a fresh new look, with lighter paint colors and a more open layout to best
display our merchandise. New product signage helps the customer know more, and then ask

more about an item’s features.

After a deep dive into understanding our customers, we know that these changes are
embraced by them and is one factor setting us apart from our competitors, We are also using
the knowledge garnered by our research to adjust our advertising and marketing approach
both in media mix and market allocation. Our new “discover something you=" television
campaign was recently launched and has garmered praise for its fresh and fun approach to
women's relationships with their furniture. Social media is another facet to brand building and

if you haven't already, we hope you will "like” us on Facebook and follow us on Twitter.
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The goal of technology within Havertys is to make buying and selling furniture easier. This
encompasses a multitude of points from the shopping tools on our website, in-store technology,
supply-chain systems, warehouse systems and delivery tools. We are equipping our sales team
with tools for use with customers in the store and prospecting for future visits. Consumer
engagement will be improved as associates have the opportunity to remain with the customer
and respond to guestions using technology at their fingertips. New hand-held delivery devices
eliminate paper manifests and aid in more quickly resolving issues. Our robust website continues
to improve with new features and functionality. Our investment in technology is changing the
way we do business every day, making us more efficient and quickly providing relevant and

reliable information to our associates and customers.

Our increase in average ticket is the result of a renewed focus on merchandise in our middle

to upper-end price points. An important element in this strateqy is providing fashionable
customizable items within a relatively short time-frame. Our Custom Choice uphalstery program
offers a sizeable number of items that are available in a variety of configurations and colors
available for delivery within four to six weeks. We also offer a larger assortment of fabrics for
certain frames and delivery within six to eight weeks for customers desiring their own distinctive
style, These delivery times are significantly faster than the industry average and difficult for
competitors to emulate. Bedroom and dining collections have a variety of pieces to meet our
customers’ needs and styles including regional preferences from southern heritage to midtown
metro and coastal inspirations to western flair. During 2011 we added key brand names to our
furniture mix that are compatible with the Havertys brand and valued by the consumer. We will
review other brands for inclusion in our showrooms that have a strong correlation with fashion
and quality and will provide product exclusivity to Havertys in our markets. Accessories play an
important part in completing a fashionable room in a home or in our store settings. We helieve
our new accessories program will reinforce our intentional steps to highlight Havertys’ fashion
expertise. Our team’s ability to develop a strong merchandise fine-up across all categories with

a sharp focus on profit margins has helped us weather challenging times and provides great

opportunities for growth,

These improvements in our stores, the new functionality provided by technology, the distinctive

products in our showrooms and a highly rated sales force are how we are raising the bar as the
best service provider in our industry. Furniture Today, a leading trade publication, in naming
Havertys “Furniture Retailer of the Year - 2011" referred to your company as “a smart and

focused retail entity.” We think that is a fair summation of 2011 and our goals for 2012.

In addition to enhancements in key areas of our business we continue to make significant
progress in many areas that impact our customers, employees, and communities. We recognize
that when it comes to supporting the community surrounding us, the environment cannot be
overlooked, HVterra is Havertys’ vision for a more sustainable company and is designed to fulfill
part of our stated mission, "we will be responsible in our relationship to the environment and

encourage all our associates to be environmentally sensitive.”

Havertys’ trucks drive over 600,000 miles monthly consuming approximately 90,000 gallons

of fuel. Sophisticated routing software to optimize efficiency reduces miles driven and gatlons
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of fuel consumed by 10 percent. We have invested $750,000 in equipment that recycles
approximately 4,000 tons of corrugated material, 500 tons of plastic film and 120 tons of

foam packaging each year. Our Bright Inspirations project in addition to bringing our stores to
an overall consistency of presentation and customer experience also provides an opportunity

to make our stores more energy efficient. During 2011 and 2012, we will invest over $1.8 million
in energy projects such as more efficient HVAC systems, energy management and LED

conve

ions, reducing our energy usage and lowering our costs for the future. Fuel savings,
recycling and energy efficiency all have an impact on our bottom line, to people, to ou

communities and leads to a competitive advantage.

Our stated mission also includes “we will be considered a good corporate citizen in every

location.” Working with our associates, we supported the Making Strides Against Breast Cancer

and United Way campaigns. Havertys provided furniture and local teams worked with the crew

of ABC Extrerne Makeover: Home Edition in preparing a new facility for Steps & Stages, an
organization which provides hope to homeless women veterans. Havertys employees were also
actively engaged in making a positive difference in their communities. Annually we recognize
those employees through the “Keep the Promise” Rawson Haverty Sr. Community Service
Award. Nominations are made by co-workers and the recipient is chosen based on exceptional
contribution to their communities and in keeping with Mr. Haverty's philosophy that “People

are more important than things.”

MG FORWARD

¢ see the beginning signs of an improving economy and some nascent recovery in the

housing industry, we believe Havertys is prepared to make significant market share gains in

almost every market we serve. After diligently addressing every facet of our opera

1oNsS we are

transitioning from fine-tuning the fundamentals to generating new profitable growth. As we

maove

head we will continue to focus on delivering top line sales growth, firmly maintaining a
structure that improves profitability at anticipated demand levels and preserving a rock solid
balance sheet. Havertys heritage of 127 years is its reputation as the furniture retailer for value,
service and integrity. Our team protects that kagacy, and strives together to strengthen our

b

d and deliver profitable growth for all of Havertys’ stakeholders.

Thank you for your continued support of our efforts,

Z‘M

Clarence H. Smith
President and CEO
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains “forward-looking statements” -
that is, statements related to future, not past, events. In
this context, forward-looking statements often address
our expected future business and financial performance
and financial condition. These statements are within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933
and Section 21F of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

projections of sales or comparable store

sales, gross profit, SG&A expenses, capital
expenditures or other financial measures;

« descriptions of anticipated plans or objectives
of our management for operations or products;

« forecasts of performance; and

« assumptions regarding any of the foregoing.

Because these statements involve anticipated events or
conditions, forward-looking statements often include words

36 MLy

such as “anticipate,” “believe, “estimate,” “expect)” “intend,’
could, “may; “should) “will]

e >

plan,” “project,” “target,” “can,
“would, or similar expressions.

¥

These forward-looking statements are based upon
assessments and assumptions of management in light
of historical results and trends, current conditions

and potential future developments that often involve
judgment, estimates, assumptions and projections.
Forward-looking statements reflect current views about
our plans, strategies and prospects, which are based

on information currently available,

Although we believe that our plans, intentions and
expectations as reflected in or suggested by any forward-
looking statements are reasonable, they are not guarantees.
Actual results may differ materially from our anticipated
results described or implied in our forward-looking
statements, and such differences may be due to a variety

of factors. Qur business could also be affected by additional
factors that are presently unknown to us or that we
currently believe to be immaterial to our business,

Discussed elsewhere in further detail in this report are
some important risks, uncertainties and contingencies
which could cause our actual results, performance or
achievements to be materially different from any forward-
looking statements made or implied in this report.

Forward-looking statements are only as of the date they

are made and they might not be updated to reflect changes
as they occur after the forward-looking statements are
made. We assume no obligations to update publicly any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. In evaluating for-
ward-looking statements, you should consider these risks
and uncertainties, together with the other risks described
from time to time in our other reports and documents filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, and
you should not place undue reliance on those statements.

We intend for any forward-looking statements to be cov-
ered by, and we claim the protection under, the safe harbor
provisions for forward-looking statements contained in the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
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INTERNET

Our website has pre
growing number of consumers that use the internet

to pre-shop before going to a store. The site also provides
our sales associates a tool to further engage the customer
while she is in the store and extend her shopping
experience when she returns home. We limit on-line

en to be useful in reaching the

sales of our furniture to within cur delivery network,
and accessories to the continental United States. We
believe that a direct-to-customer business complements
our retail store operations by building brand awareness
and is an effective advertising vehicle.

Our website features a variety of shopping tools including

customized merchandise views, room planners and delivery

avaitability. We also have a large number of product reviews
written by our custormners which are important to shoppers.
Our site allows consumers to develop “wish lists, place
orders on-line and set delivery of their purchases. Features
for in-store or web post-purchases include “follow the
truck” for deliveries and other customer service opportuni-
ties. Our website received approximately 6.5 million unique
visitors during 2011, a 3.8% increase over 2010, Visitors

spent 1.4% longer at the site than in 2010 and our products
were viewed 14.7 million times, a 10.9% increase over 2010,
Although sales placed via our website are minor, the
number of orders increased 8.5% and sales dollars in-
creased 3.4% in 2011 compared to 2010,

SUPPLIERS

We have developed strong relationships with our suppliers
and belteve that we receive excellent pricing and service
from our key vendors due to the volume and reliability of
our purchase commitrents. We buy our merchandise
from numerous foreign and domestic manufacturers and
importers, the largest ten of which accounted for approxi-
mately 54% of our purchasing spending during 2011, Wood

products, or “case goods,” are generally imported from A
A & (&) 7

ia,

with less than 5% of our selected case goods at December
31, 2011 produced domestically. Upholstered items are

not as heavily imported, with the exception of our leather
products, Approximately 87% of our leather merchandise

was imported from Mexico or Asia during 2011
SUPPLY CHAIN

The longer lead times required for deliveries from overseas
factories and the production of merchandise exclusively for
Havertys makes it imperative for us to have both warehous-
ing capabilities and effective supply chain control. Our

Bastern Distribution Center has sufficient capacity to store

imported goads and flow product from our domestic
upholstery suppliers. Our distribution facilities are
currently underutilized due to the severe recession in retail
home furniture sales. We believe our infrastructure could
service $1 billion in annual sales. During 2008 and 2009

we made significant reductions in our warehouse and
distribution workforce in response to the lower sales levels
and implemented the use of certain technologies to increase
productivity. Our merchandising and advertising teams
provide input to the ordering process such that we currently
have overall inventory levels within an appropriate range
and have reduced the amount of written sales awaiting
product for delivery. Advancements in the availability of
real-time information allow our supply chain team to more
closely follow our import orders from the manufacturing
plant through each stage of transit. Using this tool we

can more accurately set customer delivery dates prior to
receipt of product.

COMPETITION

The retail sale of home furnishings is a highly fragmented
and competitive business. The degree and sources of
competition vary by geographic area. We compete with
numerous individual retail furniture stores as well as chains
and certain department stores. Department stores benefit
competitively from more established name recognition in
specific markets, a larger customer base due to their
non-furnishings product lines and proprietary credit cards.
Furniture manufacturers have also opened their own
dedicated retail stores in an effort to control and protect
the distribution prospects of their branded merchandise.

We believe Havertys is uniquely positioned in the market-
place, with a targeted mix of merchandise that appeals to
customers who are somewhat more affluent than those

of competitive price-oriented furniture store chains. Gur
ability to make prompt delivery of orders through mainte-
nance of inventory and to tailor merchandise to customers’
desires on a local market basis are we believe significant
competitive advantages. We also consider our experienced
sales personnel and excellent customer service as important
factors in our competitive success.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2011, we had approximately 3,050
employees: 2,275 in individual retail store operations,
160 in our corporate and credit operations, 50 in our
customer-service call centers, and 565 in our warehouse
and delivery points. None of our employees is a party
to any union contract, -



TRADEMARKS AND DOMAIN NAMES

We have registered our various logos, trademarks and
service marks, We believe that our trademark position
is adequately protected in all markets in which we do

business. In addition, we have registered and maintain

numerous internet domain names including “havertys.com.”

o3

Collectively, the trademarks, service marks and domain

names that we hold are of material importance to us.

GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION

Our operations are required to meet federal, state and
local regulatory standards in the areas of safety, health and
environmental pollution controls. Historically, compliance

sith these standards has not had a material adverse effect
on our operations. We believe that our facilities are in
compliance, in all material respects, with applicable federal,
state and local laws and regulations concerned with safety,
health and environmental protection.

The products we sell are subject to federal regulatory
standards including, but not limited to, those outlined in
the Consumer Product Safety Improvement Act. We have
processes in place to ensure compliance with these stan-
dards and that these processes are adjusted as necessary for
changes in the regulations. We believe that the products we

58

sell are in substantial compliance with the regulatory
standards governing such products,

The extension of credit to consumers is a highly regulated
area of our business. Numerous federal and state laws

impose disclosure zmd other requirements on the origina-
ement of credit accounts. These

tion, servicing and enf
laws include, but are not Hmited to, the Federal T m{h and
Lending Act, Equal Credit (}p;mrmnmf Act, Credit CARD

Act, and Federal Trade Commission Act. St
limitations on the maximum amount of finance charges
that we can charge and also impose other restrictions on
consumer creditors, such as us, including restrictions on

ate laws impose

collection and enforcement. We routinely review our con-
it
consumer credit laws, Failure on our part to comply with

tracts and procedures to ensure compliance w

b applicable

applicable laws could expose us to substantial penalties
and claims for damages and, in certain circumstances, may
require us to refund finance charges already paid and to
forego finance charges not yet paid under non »u);’nplying
contracts. We believe that we are in substantial compliance
with all applicable federal and state consumer credit

and collections laws.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

FILINGS WITH THE SEC

As a public company, we regularly file reports and proxy
statements with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

These reports are available on our website as soon as

reasonab
to, the &
under “Tovestor Information,” we have provided a link to

r practicable after they are filed with, or furnished
Ohur internet address is www.havertys.com and

the SEC's website. This site contains, among other things,
our annual report on Form 10-K, proxy statement,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports

on Form 8-I,

The information on the website listed above is not

and should not be considered part of this annual report
on Form 10-K and is not incor p(mtec by reference

in this document.

ITEM 14, RISK FACTORS

The following discussion of risk factors contains forward-
looking staterments, These risk factors may be important to
understanding any statement in this annual report on Form
10-K or elsewhere. The following information should be
read in conjunction with Part IL, Item 7. “Management's

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations” (MDE&A)
statements and related notes in Part 11, Item 8. “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K

and the consolidated financial

We routinely encounter and address risks, some of which
will cause our future results to be different ~ sometimes
materially different - than we presently anticipate. The
following txamw, as well as others described elsewhere in
this report or in our other filings with the SEC that could
lv affect our business, financial condition or
results, shmzia be carefully considered. Below, we

{
material
operating
describe certain important operational and strategic risks
and uncertainties but they are not the only risks we face.
Our reactions to material future developments as well as
O Compe titors’ reactions to those d méve;@:}n wents may also

fny

;mg act our business a)pc.,zamo 15 or hinancial results, If any

of the émkmmv risks actually occur, our business, financial

condition or operating results may be adversely affected.

i



Changes in economic conditions could adversely affect
demand for our products.

spending by our customers. A number of economic factors,
including, but not limited to availability of consumer credit,
interest rates, consumer confidence and debt levels, retail
trends, housing starts, sales of new and existing homes, and
the level of mortgage refinancing, generally affect demand
for our products. Higher unemployment rates, higher fuel
and other energy costs, and higher tax rates adversely affect
demand. The decline in economic activity and conditions in
the markets in which we operate has, and may continue to,
adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations for the foreseeable future.

A large portion of our sales represent discretionary

The financial crisis could adversely affect our business
and financial performance.

The ongoing financial crisis has tightened credit markets
and lowered liquidity levels. Lower credit availability may
increase borrowing costs. Some of our suppliers are
experiencing serious financial problems due to reduced
access to credit and lower revenues. Financial duress may
prompt some of our suppliers to seek to renegotiate terms
with us, reduce production or file for bankruptey protec-
tion. Our customers may be unable to obtain financing to
purchase products and meet their payment obligations to
us. The occurrence of these events may adversely affect our
operations, earnings, cash flows and/or financial position.

We face significant competition from national, regional
and local retailers of home furnishings.

The retail market for home furnishings is highly frag-
nented and intensely competitive. We currently compete
against a diverse group of retailers, including national
department stores, regional or independent specialty
stores, and dedicated franchises of furniture manufacturers,
National mass merchants such as COSTCO also have
limited product offerings. We also compete with retailers
that market products through store catalogs and the

Internet, In addition, there are few barriers to entry into our

current and contemplated markets, and new competitors
may enter our current or future markets at any time. Our
existing competitors or new entrants into our industry may
use a number of different strategies to compete against us,
including aggressive advertising, pricing and marketing,
extension of credit to customers on terms more favorable
than we offer, and expansion by our existing competitors
or entry by new competitors into markets where

we currently operate.

Competition from any of these sources could cause us
to lose market share, revenues and customers, increase
expenditures or reduce prices, any of which could have
a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

If we fail to anticipate changes in consumer preferences,
our sales may decline.

Our products must appeal to our target consumers

whose preferences cannot be predicted with certainty

and are subject to change. Our success depends upon

our ability to anticipate and respond in a timely manner
to fashion trends relating to home furnishings. If we fail

to identify and respond to these changes, our sales of these
products may decline. In addition, we often make commit-
ments to purchase products from our vendors in advance
of proposed delivery dates. Significant deviation from the
projected demand for products that we sell may have an
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial
condition, either from lost sales or lower margins due to
the need to reduce prices to dispose of excess inventory.

We import a substantial portion of our merchandise
from foreign sources. Changes in exchange rates or tariffs
could impact the price we pay for these goods, resulting
in potentially higher retail prices and/or lower gross
profit on these goods.

During 2011, approximately 53% of our furniture purchases,
on a dollar basis were for goods not produced domestically.

All of these purchases were denominated in U.S. dollars.

As exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and certain other
currencies become unfavorable, the likelihood of price

increases from our vendors increases. Some of the

products we purchase are also subject to tariffs, If tariffs
are imposed on additional products or the tariff rates are
increased our vendors may increase their prices. Such
price increases, if they occur, could have one or more of
the following impacts:

+ we could be forced to raise retail prices so

high that we are unable to sell the products

at current unit volumes;
« if we are unable to raise retail prices commensurately
with the costs increases, gross profit as recognized
under our LIFO inventory accounting method could
be negatively impacted; or
we may be forced to find alternative sources of
comparable product, which may be more expensive
than the current product, of lower quality, or the
vendor may be unable to meet our requirements

2z

for quality, quantities, delivery schedules or
other key terms.



Significant fluctuations and volatility in the cost
of raw materials and components could adversely
affect our profits.

The primary materials our vendors use to produce and
manufacture our products are various woods and wood
products, resin, steel, leather, cotton, and certain oil based
products. On a global and regional basis, the sources and
prices of those materials and compoenents are susceptible
to significant price fluctuations due to supply/demand
trends, transportation costs, government regulations and

tariffs, changes in currency exchange rates, price controls,
the economic climate, and other unforeseen circumsta
Significant increases in these and other costs in the future

Id materially affect our vendors’ costs and our profits

as discussed above.

We are dependent upon the ability of our third-

party producers, many of whom are located in foreign
countries, to meet our requirements; any failures

by these producers to meet our requirements, or the
unavailability of suitable producers at reasonable prices
may negatively impact our ability to deliver gquality
products to our customers on a timely basis or result

in higher costs or reduced net sales.

We source substantially all of our products from non-
excl

sive, third-party producers, many located in foreign

countries. Although we place a high value on long-term
relationships with our suppliers, generally we do not have
long-term contracts but, instead, conduct business on an
order-by-order basis. Therefore, we compete with other
companies for the production capacity of independent
manufacturers. We regularly depend upon the ability of

third-party producers to secure a sufficient supply of raw
materials, adequately finance the production of goods
ordered and maintain sufficient manufacturing and
shipping capacity. Although we monitor production in
third-party manufacturing locations, we cannot be certain

that we will not experience operational ditheulties with

our manufacturers, such as the reduction of availability

H
of production capacity, errors in complyving with product
specifications, insufficient quality control, failures to meet
production deadlines or increases in manufacturing costs.

Such difficulties may negatively impact our ability to
deliver quality products to our customers on a timely
basis, which may, in turn, have a negative
ionships and result in h}ws@ r m;ti sales,

pact on our

customer rela

We also require third-party producers to meet certain
standards in terms of working conditions, environumental
protection and other matters before placing business with
them. As a result of costs relating to compliance with these

higher prices than some of our
Emts n addition, faiture by us or our
ndependent manufacturers to adhere to labor or other laws
or business practices accepte’fd as ethical, and the potential
litigation, negative publicity and political pressure relating
to any of these events, could disrupt our operations or
harm our reputation.

standards, we may pa
gk’\:ril?}c‘%ai\ for proe

Our revenue could be adversely affected by
a disruption in our supply chain.

Disruptions to our supply chain could result in late
als of product. This could negatively affect sales due
sed levels of out-of-stock merchandise and loss

of confidence by customers in our ability to deliver
goods as promised.

The rise of oil and gasoline prices could
affect our profitability.

A significant increase in oil and gasoline prices could
adversely affect our profitability. Our distribution system,
which utilizes three distribution centers and multiple home

v centers to reach our markets across 17 Southern

1
deliv
and Midwestern states, is very transportation dependent.
Additionally, we deliver substantially all of our customers’
purchases to their homes.

If transportation costs exceed amounts we are able
to effectively pass on to the consumer, either by

12

I3

sigher prices and/or higher delivery charges, then

ig
i profitability will suffer.

Because of our limited number of distribution
centers, should one become damaged, our operating
results could suffer.

We utilize three large distribution centers to flow our
merchandise from the vendor to the consumer, This sy

retem
is very efhicient for reducing inventory requirements, but
m&kes us aperationally vulnerable should one of these

acilities become damaged.

Our information technology infrastructure is valnerable
to damage that could harm our business,

Our ability to operate our business from day to day, in
parimm; our ability to manage our point-of-sale, credit
operations and distribution system, largely depends on the
cient operation af our computer bardware and software

CF
systems. We use management information systems to

communicate customer information, provide real~time
inventory information, manage our credit portfolio and



suondo remauad snyd 7epz ysnony

S91RP UOTIPUTIIII) STIOLIRA UM $1AQ PISED] 218 SUOTILDO] §9
Furaretual 2y, $190US SOUR[EQ INO U0 PapniouL ose sopn uy
SUROIDE [RIDTRUL O] 911D “UDIYM UOIJIW G 1§ JO anjea joog
JaU B (3IM STUOTIBIO] PRSEa] XIS JARY oM z\.*gmzo;g;;p\/ aolyw

o ‘a"ﬁUi pling pue PuUR] JO] onfBA OO ol & ey TIh7
BTl PQLIE03(T JE PalMmo oM 2TYM SUONEDOT [Telad OF @41

1015 4O 21€3% 21015 4O 81015
1quIny 1DgUIN

I8 4G 1107

¢ 3qQUIDNACT T poreiado oM §21018 JO IDQUUTIT O 1I0)
108 91qp) FUIMOYIO] 9U L, "0T07 ‘1¢ I2qQUUda(] IR 821075 R}

o1 parediiod 821038 611 10 3007 axenbs vonpw 7'y A
-rxoadde papeiot 1707 “1¢ Iquuadac] e ooeds 21018 [RIal Ingy
SHHOLS

SILUIJOHd T WL

arqeordde jon

SINFANWOD 44VLS GAATOSIHND "9l W3l

SIIPIOYDOIS ING 0] PRI DIBM

e J1SUONNQLISTP 210jaq $jasse paBpayd Jno wouy oy
urjuaurded 01 papnue oq pnom Ao 1paid %um[(mm
MO IPUN SIPUS] 2} “UOHRZIUESI00T 10 UONIOSSIp
anrepmbi} AoUdA[OSUT JO JUIAD U} UT 'PadNPad 34 [[Im
MOLIOY ) DQR[IEAR JUNOWIE a1y} AIOJUSAUT J0O JO Brijea
Ut $SO7 JUEsYTuSIS € JO JUIAY AU U YSED PUER D[QRAIII]
$YUTODDE SILICIUIAUL INO A;uxunm Auadoad yeuosiod mo
JO J{® AJRIIURISONS UL $35210)UY A paIn
Fuiajoass oY1 opun suoneSqo Ino ‘WONIppe Ul uoijiw
NOBGDIL]

o8 ale N“}Eil“‘“; Upaao

07001$ JO S830XT UL SO]ES 3RS [B3T 10 SUCHDRSUR]
a1es ur 28e8us oS [EIden WodpdL ‘SPUIPIAID Ysed
Ked suar jo sodA] LIvIIeD INOUT S52UPIIGIPUL [RUOIIIPPE

anout sFurgy xoyjo Fuowe 01 ANIqe 100 JH] YoM
suopsTAOId SUTRITOD ANTIOR] 1Pai0 FUIAJOADY JURLIND 1N

SUOTIIPUOD INUOUODD PIE SSOUISH(

SwBuey 01 puodsaa 03 AIqe Ino urerswoed Avw
YITYAM ST WO STOOASaI fepueuy pue Suneredo
ssodur Apryoey 1rpard SUIAJOAST INO YO $WID) 94,

syvadsord pue symsar mo

VAT A[PSISAPE IDULINY PINGD YoM SJUAs 283Y] Ag

paioapye Ajoane8au ag os[e oo pueiq ano jo uondasiad

ISWnsuo sasuadxs PUe 598507 peuue;aun }U?WL{U()E“ AN

0] 570 D8NRI PUT SSAULSTIQ N0 FuTuUny Wioly Juswsdeuey
0o L)Eij%@{.p prioo s8urpossosd yons Auy siojensol

31838 PUR [RIDPS] PUR (JiNsme] UOLOR SB[ © Jo jaud s8I0
AJRNIPIAIPUT IDU1ID) SIAP[OYPIRD ‘SPIRd 9Nnsst JBY) SHoIun
Jpatn pue syueq siapraoad paeo yuswded Aq 3ydnoiq aq
AT WOTRULLIOIUT PIRD Q2P 10 IPaId JO Youp) 0} pajead
s8utpooool syuaprou Jo saddy ssayy o) Bunepl arng oy
ut sfurpsasoid rayjo 10 symsmer 03 1afqns oq ospe Lew
DA PUR “ULTTRILIOIIT PAED JIQDP 10 J1paid Jo youp) pafiope
10 [RIOE 2y JO o SuisLe suonoesues) judnpneLy Ajpo

-paodand Jog surep o 100lgqns awonaq 20Ny oy ur Aewr apn

DSLAIIUT O ANUNUO PIOd d8esn Pue 1107 Ut 98¢ 0]
0107 U1 $31ES 1IN0 JO 0406 WO POSEAIOUL SUOTIOR
wetuded gBnory) paiepua) STUNOWNY JaUIs|ul 3] I19A0

121y Paed
PUE $21038 1IN0 Ut spres juatnded sruosnele 3dsooe s
TUOTIRULIOJUT JOTHOISTD [BNUSPYUOD JO UOISSIIISURL)
pue Bursso0id D100310910 INO YIIM UOIDSTHOD U 201

M BHSLA &}?,1333{{95 [EELERE }%ﬂg{nsa} 81803 100Uy Aewu 3M

Aypiqeyjoxd pue safes 121 paonpal
Tl 3nsar pue sz,m‘gm.z:ad{) 0o uf gondniIsu ue asned

PO ‘swoisAs Juepunpal pue wepd 41940031 19358SIP N0 Aq
popoddns you 8191 31 Sasned asouy Jo Aue o) onp aunprey Auy

BIDISBSIP [ATEU D10 PUR $POOY S3IL SIOPLUIO} «
PUL GIURAD TRITUIS PUR WSIEPURA JO 50T [EUOTUDIIL »
sasnaia aonduron
‘syuaas seprus pue uonedorddesrur ‘seyoeaiq
AMOS$ 10 vlRp JO $80] 10N pue eoisdyd
ssoakordws Yo uorsiaradns yo
‘Aq voresado sadosduy 1o 2ouadnBou sojerado o
(SOINTR) YIOMIDU BIED 10 SUCHRITUNIULIOII)

TPuIaul pue sainfiey swasds opnduwros ssop ramod .
oy nondnaieul 5o

sHeurep 0] 9jgeIaumA ore suoneIado Mo pue swissds o5y ]
SILUOY SIGWIOISND N0 0] AI2ALRP 03 $73(] 243 Ul $poos 1o
119701 1oy WeysAs LONNGIISIP 100 JO §1978) (8 ojpury o)




DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES CORPORATE FACILITIES

Our executive and administrative offices are located at

We |

case or own regional distribution facilities

in the following locations: 786 Johnson Ferry Road, Suite 800, Atlanta, Georgla, These
od facilities contain approximately 48,000 square feet

Owned Approximate of office space on two floors of a suburban mid-rise office
Location or Lteased  Square i«n@maqe building. We also lease 7,000 square feet of office space in
o W W . . . .
o . ﬁﬁw . Chattanooga, Tennessee for our credit operations.

38,00 O

akeland, | For additional information, see “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations” included in this report under ftem 7 of Part 1]

ITEM 3.LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We also use one smaller leased freestanding cross-dock

etail locations, There are no material pending legal proceedings
to which we are a party or of which any of our properties
is the subject.

facility and five others which are attachec

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our two c%aasas of conumon stock trade on The New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE”). The trading symbol for the cammon
stock is HVT and for Class A common stock is HVT.A. The table below sets forth the high and low sales prices per share as
reported on the NYSE and the dividends declared for the last two years:

2011
Common Stock o Class A Common Stock
Dividend Dividend
Quarter Ended High Low Declared High Low Dwiarec)

2010
Common Stock - Class A Cot nm{)ﬁ St k
: Dividend Dividend
rter Ended Hi Low Declared High Low Declared




STOCKHOLDERS

The number of stockholders was approximately 2,500 for our common stock and 250 for our Class A common stock as of
February 29, 2012.

DHVIDENDS

The payment of dividends and the amount are deterrined by the Board of Directors and depend upon, among other
factors, our earninigs, operations, financial condition, capital requirements and general business outlook at the time such
dividend is considered. We had paid a quarterly cash dividend since 1935, but given the general economic decline, the

board suspended the quarterly dividend in the fourth quarter of 2008, The board approved dividends in the fourth quarter
of 2009, 2010 and 2011

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

Information concerning the Company’s equity compensation plans is set forth under the Company’s definitive Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 11, 2012, to be fled with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Company’s 2012 Proxy Statement) and is incorporated herein by reference.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the performance of Havertys common stock and Class A common stock against the cumulative
return of the NYSE/AMEX/Nasdaq Home Furnishings & Equipment Stores Index (SIC Codes 5700 - 5799) and the S&P
Smallcap 600 Index for the period of five years commencing December 31, 2006 and ended December 31, 2011, The graph
assurnes an initial investment of $100 on January 1, 2006 and reinvestment of dividends,
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

Industry

The retail residential furniture industry's results are
influenced by new and existing housing sales, consumer
confidence, spending on large ticket items, interest rates
and availability of credit and the overall strength of the
economy. The industry has experienced declining demand
heginning in the fourth quarter of 2006 and it has remained
difficult as a number of factors have negatively impacted
consumers’ discretionary spending. These ongoing factors
include continued high levels of unemployment, lower
home values, stagnant home sales, increased foreclosure
activity, and reduced access to credit, all of which have
created headwinds to industry growth.

Our Business

We sell home furnishings in our retail stores and via our
website and record revenue when the products are deliv-
ered to our customer. Our products are selected to appeal
to a middle to upper-middle income consumer across a
variety of styles. Our commissioned sales associates receive
a high level of product training and are provided a number
of tools with which to serve our customers. We do not
outsource the delivery function, something common in
the industry, but instead ensure that the "last contact” is
handled by a customer-oriented Havertys delivery team.
We are recognized as a provider of high quality products
and service in the markets we serve.

2011 Highlights

Sales for 2011 were virtually flat with 2010, however, pre-
tax income was $4.1 million lower. We improved gross
profit by $1.9 million, but this was offset by a $4.0 million
increase in SG&A. This increase was driven by planned
higher advertising and compensation expenses, expected
increases in group medical insurance costs, increased
delivery expenses resulting from higher fuel prices, and the
costs for remodeling, relocations and other changes in our
stores. Pre-tax income in 2010 also benefited from $1.7
million in gains from sales in property and equipment that
were not repeated in 2011, The sustained improvements

in our results over the past few years, and other factors,
allowed us to release $14.1 million of our valuation allow-
ance on deferred tax assets resulting in a $0.64 benefit to
per share earnings for 2011. We continued our focus on
cash flow and working capital management in 2011 and
made important investments in our business. We did not
use our credit facility during the year and our total debt

to total capital was 4.7% at December 31, 2011.

Management Qbjectives

Management is focused on capturing more market share
and increasing sales per square foot of showroom space.
This organic growth will be driven by concentrating our
efforts on our customers with improved interactions
highlighted by new products, enhanced stores and better
technology. The Company’s strategies for profitability
include targeted marketing initiatives, productivity and
process improvements, and efficiency and cost-saving
measures. Qur focus is to serve our customers better and
distinguish ourselves in the marketplace. Although macro-
economic headwinds prevail, we are encouraged by the
ongoing improvement of our performance. We are pleased
with the recent positive trends in same-store sales and
believe that modest sales growth with our efficient operat-
ing structure will generate profits at a greater pace.

Key Performance Indicators

We evaluate our performance based on several key metrics
which includes net sales, comparable store sales, sales per
square foot, gross profit, operating costs as a percentage

of sales, cash flow, total debt to total capital, and earnings
per share. The goal of utilizing these measurements is

to provide tools in economic decision-making such as
store growth, capital allocation and product pricing. We
also employ metrics that are customer focused (customer
satisfaction score, on-time-delivery and quality), internal
effectiveness and efficiency metrics (sales per employee
average sale per ticket, closing ratios per customer store
visit, exceptions per deliveries, and lost time incident rate).
These measurements aid us in determining areas of our
operations that are in need of additional attention and

in determining compensation.

OPERATING RESULTS

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated
selected statement of operations data, expressed as

rercentage of net sales:
o

Percentage of Net Sales
2011 2010 2009

N
T

1.4 (0.7

Net income (loss)



MET SALES

Comparable-store or “comp-store” sales is a measure which indicates the performance of our existing stores by comparing
the growth in sales for these xwws for a particular pcnwd over the corresponding period in the prior year. Stores are

considered non-comparable if open for less than 12 full calendar months or if the selling square footage has been ¢t

anged
e sales events from warehouses or temporary locations

significantly during the past 12 full calendar months. Large

are also excluded from mmmmiw store sales, as are periods when stores are closed or b
store sales is an indicator of relative customer spending and store performance.

1g remaodeled. As a retailer, comp-

Total sales increased $0.6 million or 0.1% in 2011 and $32.1 million or ?

5.5% in 2010, Comparable store sales increased 9.3%
$1.1 million in 2011 and $8.2 million in 2010 of
the changes were from closed, new and otherwise non-comparable stores,

B

or $1.7 million in 2011 and 7.0% or $40.3 million in 2010. The remaining
el

The following outlines our sales and comp-store sales increases and decreases for the periods indicated (amounts and
# {
percentages may not always add to totals due to rounding):

December 31,

Comp-Store

Sal
Ylncrease
(decrease)

OVer prior

Sales in 2009 continued to fall as housing sales, one driver of furniture purchases, remained at historically low levels.
Home miu@ﬁ declined and lending tightened such that consumers had less access to funding for large discretionary

purchases. We continued to promote longer term no interest financing but for somewhat shorter periods. We highlighted
more of our price p@im sensitive items within our merchandise line-up and showcased their value to appeal to the more

COst-CONSCIOUS consume

Sales in 2010 rebounded from 2009 levels and were pax"'{i,(;uiaré‘u strong during the first half of the year. We had strong gains in
sries. Furniture for the often used public living spaces outpaced

;‘m 2010 was slightly lower than in 2009 as more price sensitive

our bedding sales and inprovements acvoss all product categ

master bedroom and formal dining rooms. Our average ticket
customers responded to our values,

Sales in 2011 remained slightly below 2010 through the first three quarters of the year. We had better results in the hist by

stronger fourth quarter. Bedding sales continued to provide a growing percentage of our business for 2011, The appeal of our

higher price point products resulted in a higher average ticket for 2011

2012 Outlook

Our totalsales for 2012 and comparable store sales growth are expected to be pm& ve given the severity of the previous
declines, but we believe total sales will still be below our 2008 levels of $691.1 million.




GROSS PROFIY

Our cost of sales consist primarily of the purchase price of
the merchandise together with inbound freight, handling
within our distribution centers and transportation costs to
the local markets we serve. Our gross profit is primarily
dependent upon vendor pricing, the mix of products sold
and promotional pricing activity. Substantially all of our
occupancy and home delivery costs are included in selling,
general and administrative expenses as is a portion of our
warehousing expenses, Accordingly, our gross profit may
not be comparable to those entities that include some of
these expenses in cost of goods sold.

Year-to-Year Comparisons

(Gross profit as a percentage of net sales increased to 51.7%
in 2011 compared to 51.4% in 2010. Our focus on higher
price point products and pricing discipline combined with
a $1.3 million smaller LIFO impact were key to the gross
profit improvement.

Gross profit as a percentage of net sales declined to 51.4%
in 2010 compared to 51.9% in 2009. This decrease is
primarily the result of modest inflation and a $1.5 million
(0.2% of sales) increase in our LIFO reserve compared to a
$1.1 million (0.2% of sales) decrease in the reserve in 2009.

Gross profit as a percentage of net sales was relatively

flat in 2009 compared to 2008, Strengthened inventory
management reduced the impact of close-out and damaged
merchandise by approximately $2.5 million in 2009
compared to 2008, The impact of the change to our LIFO
reserve was approximately a $1.1 million benefit in 2009
compared to a $1.0 million expense in 2008. These changes,
along with improvements generated by new products,
helped offset much of the impact from promotional

pricing discounts on our gross profit.

2012 Outlook

Increasing freight costs and labor rates for our suppliers
will generate pressure on product costs. We anticipate
continued soft demand and expect that over capacity wili
help dampen vendor price increases. Our merchandising
strategy will be similar to prior years using promotional
pricing selectively during traditional holiday and other sales
events or to highlight specific products or categories. We
expect that annual gross margins for 2012 will be similar

to our annual 2011 levels.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

SG&A expenses are comprised of five categories: sell-

ing; occupancy; delivery and certain warehousing costs;
advertising and administrative. Selling expenses primarily
are comprised of compensation of sales associates and

sales support staff, and fees paid to credit card and third-
party finance companies. Occupancy costs include rents,
depreciation charges, insurance and property taxes, repairs
and maintenance expense and utility costs. Delivery

costs include personnel, fuel costs, and depreciation and
rental charges for rolling stock. Warehouse costs include
supplies, depreciation and rental charges for equipment.
Advertising expenses are primarily media production and
space, direct mail costs, market research expenses, employee
compensation and agency fees. Administrative expenses

are comprised of compensation costs for store personnel
exclusive of sales associates, information systems, executive,
accounting, merchandising, advertising, supply chain, real
estate and human resource departments.

Year-to-Year Comparisons

Our SG&A costs increased $4.0 million or 1.3% for

2011 compared to 2010. The change was largely due to
our increased advertising and marketing expenses, higher
delivery costs and greater administrative expenses. SG&A
costs increased $1.4 million or 0.4% for 2010 versus 2009
as sales increased 5.5% in 2010. Total SG&A costs, as a
percentage of net sales were 50.9% for 2011 as compared
to 50.3% in 2010 and 52.8% in 2009.

Selling expenses generally vary with sales volume. The
amounts paid for bank card charges depends upon how
many custorners choose that payment option. The cost of
our third-party financing offers will vary based on usage

and the types of credit programs we offer and those selected
by our customers, These costs remained relatively flat as a
percentage of net sales over the past three years.

Qceupancy costs in total did not change significantly

in 2011 from 2010. However increased depreciation of
$1.4 million was offset by reductions in rents and utilities.
Occupancy expenses decreased $3.7 million in 2010 from
2009 largely due to reductions in depreciation, property
taxes and utilities, We expect occupancy costs will rige in
2012 due to an increased number of stores.

Warehouse expenses were down slightly in 2011 compared
to 2010 due to labor efficiencies and reductions in repairs.
Warehouse expenses in 2010 were $2.2 million higher
than in 2009 as transportation and variable wages and
labor costs rose on the increased throughput as business
conditions improved.



Delivery expenses increased $1.0 million in 2011
compared to 2010 due to higher fuel pric
truck related expenses. Delivery costs in 2010 were
relatively flat compared to 2009 despite a 5.5% increase
in sales due to reductions in insurance costs offset by

increases in fuel prices.

and other

Total advertising and marketing costs as a percentage
of sales were 6.9% for 2011, 6.7% for 2010 and 6.6%
2009, We increased our spending $1.1 million in 2011 as

we enga ged a new marketing agency and increased our
television advertising. Our spending increased $2.8 million
in 2010 from 2009 as we anticipated a rebounding con-

r interest in home furnishing purchases. We continue

sUme

yeus on television branding messages, targeted mail
and electronic advertising.

Administrative costs increased $1.6 million or 2.3% in
2011 from 2010. The cbange was primarily due to n’}c‘:rwsc:d
salaries and related payroll and benefit costs and greater
travel expense Of’f};m in part by lower business insurance
expense. Administrative costs decreased $2.2 million or
3.0% for 2010 versus 2009 due primarily to continued
reductions in compensation costs.

2012 Qutlook
The fixed and discretionary type expenses within SG&A
for the full year of 2012 are expected to be approximateh

4213 million to $214 million, or a 3.1% increase compared
to those same costs in 2011. The main increases in this
category are for new store occupancy expense, store re-

modeling, advertising expenses and compensation. Variable
costs within SG&A are expected to be 17.0% to |

percent of sales for 2012 based on modest increases in fuel

W as a
costs used to make home deliveries.

We expect that total SG&A expenses for 2012 will be
slightly lower than 2011 levels as a percentage of net

sales as we leverage our fixed costs with increased sales.

CREDIT SERVICE CHARGE REVENUE AND
ALLOWAMCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

We maintain a small in-house financing program for
our customers with the offer most frequently chosen
carrying no interest for 12 months and requiring equal
monthly payments. This program generates very minor
credit revenue and is for credit worthy customers who
prefer financing with the retailer directly or who are
not able to quickly establish sufficient credit with other
providers on comparable terms. We offer our customers
déi; srent credit promotions, more widely used, through a
third-party provider. Sales financed by this provider are
not T i&va*;"vx" receivables; accordingly, we do not have any
credit risk or servicing responsibility for-these accounts,
and there is no credit or collection recourse to Havertys.
The most po;mim" programs offered through the third-
party provider for 2011 were no interest offers requiring
monthly payments over periods of 18 to 36 months,

The following summarizes the financing vehicles used,
accounts receivable, allowance for doubtful accounts and
credit service charge revenue (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Amount ¥

he

e ( s
S

i ‘M uww e 7‘«%& L . i
m g s C%g@ Gy W‘%
AGGn) W’

Allow,

o

$ 460

Aot
~
oy
ol
Ty
(A
o
L2



‘The allowance as a percent of total accounts receivable

has decreased as we experienced improvement in the
delinquency and problem category percentages. The dollar
amount of the allowance is also lower due to the reduction
in total accounts receivable.

Our credit service charge revenue has continued to
decline as our receivables portfolio is reduced and custom-
ers choose credit promotions with no interest features.

INTEREST EXPENSE, NET

Interest expense (income), net is prtmem‘iy comprised of
interest expense on the Company’s debt. The following
table summarizes the components of interest expense
(income), net (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Interest expense on debt decreased in 2011 due to
more favorable terms related to our credit facility after
the September 1, 2011 renewal.

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

Qur effective tax rate was (235.9%, 2.6% and 22.7% for
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Refer to Note 7 of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a
reconciliation of our income tax expense to the federal
incame tax rate.

Our 2011 rate included a benpefit from income taxes of
$14.1 million related to the release of almost all of the
valuation allowance against our net deferred tax assets.
We increased our valuation allowance against most of
our net deferred tax assets in 2008, reflecting cumulative
losses incurred, as well as our financial outlook at the time.
We implemented significant cost-cutting measures and
the sustained improvements in our results over the past
few years now supports the amount released in the fourth
quarter. The $14.1 million benefit related to the release
includes approximately $7.7 million that was originally
charged to accumulated other comprehensive income

for pension labilities but due to the prohibition against

“backward tracing” the release is included in the continuing

operations provision. Our 2011 rate also includes a

$717,000 unfavorable impact of a change in treatment

of certain state port credits by the state of Georgia. These
credits were almost completely reserved in our valuation

allowance as are the remaining credits. During 2011 we

also finalized the net operating loss carr ybcldx and amended
returns for the tax years 2005 through 2008. We adjusted
the related receivables for refunds of tax and interest and
amounts available for federal and state net operating loss
carry forwards. This resulted in an additional adjustment

to expense of $422,000.

Our 2010 rate included a $3.1 million favorable impact
related to the release of a portion of our deferred tax asset
valuation allowance. We release amounts from our reserve
as it becomes more-likely-than-not we will be able to utilize
the vareserved portion of our deferred tax assets. We had
approximately $16.7 million in our valuation allowance for
deferred tax assets at December 31, 2010,

Qur 2009 rate included the impact of the changes in federal
tax laws enacted in the fourth quarter of 2009 related to the
treatment of net operating loss carrybacks and the amend-
ing of prior years tax returns. These changes resulted in a
reduction of current tax expense of approximately $671,000
for additional refunds and a related increase in deferred tax
expense of $495,000 for the decrease in alternative mini-
mum tax credit carryforwards. The 2009 rate also includes
the unfavorable impact of $682,000 for the increase in our
deferred tax valuation allowance.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview of Liquidity

Our primary cash requirements include working capital
needs, contractual obligations, benefit plan contributions,
income tax obligations and capital expenditures. We have
funded these requirements exclusively through cash
generated from operations and not used our credit facility
since 2008. We have no funded debt and our increased lease
obligations are primarily due to arrangements that are not
considered capital leases but must be recorded on our
balance sheets. We believe funds generated from our
c\pmtcd results of operations and available cash and cash
equivalents will be sufficient to fund our primary obliga-
tions and complete projects that we have underway or
currently contemplate for the next fiscal and foreseeable
future years.

At December 31, 2011, our cash and cash equivalents
balance was $49.6 million, a decrease of $8.5 million
compared to December 31, 2010. This decrease in cash
primarily resulted from working capifal requirements,
purchases of property and equipment and the change in
our insurance collateral from a letter of credit to an escrow
account. Additional discussion of our cash flow results,
including the comparison of 2011 activity to 2010, is set
forth in the Analysis of Cash Flows section.



At December 31, 2011, our outstanding indebtedness
was $13.0 million, 0r-$3.9 million higher when compared
to December 31, 2010, and the increase was due to lease
obligations related to two stores required to be recorded
on our financial statements. Additionally, we had $43.8
available under our revolving credit facility.

Capital Expenditures

Our primary capital requirements have been focused

on our stores and the development of both proprietary
and purchased information systems. Our capital expendi-
fures were %176 million in 2011, or $3.5 million more
than in 2010

Our future capital requirements will depend in large part
on the number of and timing for new stores we open within
a given year, the investments we malke to the improvement
and maintenance of our existing stores, and our investment
in new information systems to support our key strategies.
In 2012, we anticipate that our capital expenditures will be
approximately $21.0 million, refer to our Store Expansion
and Capital Expenditures discussion below.

Analysis of Cash Flows

A summary and analysis of our cash flows for 2011, 2010
and 2009 is reflected in the table and following discussion
(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

RBRS i
Net (decmase} increase in
cash and cash equivalents $(8.5) $13.6 $40.8

(f)pm;fmg Activities

For 2011, net cash provided by operating activities de-
creased $5.1 million to $19.0 million. This net decrease
in operating cash flows was driven primarily by:

s a $3.1 million decrease from inventory,

+ a $4.6 million decrease from prepaid expenses; and

s a $3.5 million decrease resulting from routine
tluctuations in other working capital.

Partially offsetting these decreases was an increase in net
income of $7.0 million.

For 2010, net cash provided by operating activities de-
creased $14.3 million over the prior yearto $24.2 million.
"""" This change in operating cash was driven primarily by:

+ a $9.1 million decrease from inventories as we
reduced inventory levels but to a lesser extent
than the reduction in 2009,

1 $7.9 million decrease from accounts receivable

reflective of the steadier rate of lower usage by

customers of our internal programs after larger

decreases in prior years; and
a $3.2 million decrease resulting from changes
in other working capital.

Partially offsetting these changes was an increase in
net income of $12.6 million.

Investing Activities

For 2011, net cash used in investing activities increased

by $13.0 million over the prior year to $24.2 million. The
increase in cash used was primarily due to our changing
insurance collateral from a letter of credit to a $6.8 million
escrow account to reduce our costs. The increase in-cash
used was also due to a $3.5 million increase in capital
spending on new and relocated stores, the continued rollout
of our Bright Inspirations project to our existing stores

and information technology investments.

For 2010, net cash used in investing activities increased

by $14.6 million to $11.2 million. The increase in cash used
was primarily due to a $10.8 million increase in-store capital
expenditures, information technology investments, and a
decrease of $6.6 million comparing to the proceeds from

a sale leaseback transaction in 2009,

Financing Activities

For 2011, net cash used in financing activities increased by
$3.9 million to $3.3 million. This was primarily due to a de-
crease in cash provided by financing activities as-a result of
$3.0 million less in proceeds from exercise of stock options

For 2010, net cash provided by financing activities in-
creased by $1.7 million over the prior year to $0.6 million.
Cash provided by financing activities was affected by a
$3.2 million increase in proceeds from exercise of stock
options and a $1.7 million increase in dividends.

Long-Term Debt

In September 2011 Havertys entered into an Amended
and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agréement”)
with a bank. Refer to Note 5 of the Notes to Con-
solidated Financial Statements for information about
our Credit Agreement.



CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following summarizes our contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of December 31, 2010 (in thousands):

Payments Due or Expected by Period ) .

Less than 1-3 3-5 After 5

Total ? Year Years Years Years
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(1) These amounts are for our lease obligations recorded in our consolidated balance sheets, including interest amounts

For additional information about our leases, refer to Note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

STORE EXPANSION AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

We have entered new markets and made continued improvements and relocations of our store base. The following outlines
the change in our selling square footage for each of the three years ended December 31 (square footage in thousands):

2011 2010 2009

# Squa, # Square # Square
of Stores  Footage of Stores Footage of Stores  Footage

A
{?A i M&M%’\ %W} il

The tollowing table summarizes our store activity in 201 1.

Location Month Opened Month Closed Category

Florida : r New Market

Our plans for 2012 include opening two new stores in new markets, one store in an existing market and one store relocation.
These changes should increase net selling space in 2012 by approximately 2.4% assuming the new stores open and existing
stores close as planned.

Our investing activities in stores and operations in 2011, 2010 and 2009 and planned outlays for 2012 are categorized
in the table below. Capital expenditures for stores in the years noted do not necessarily coincide with the years in which
the stores open.

in thousands) Proposed
2012 2011
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We do not generally enter into off-balance sheet arrange-
ments. We did not have any relationships with unconsoli-
dated entities or financial partnerships which would have
been established for the purposes of facilitating off-balance
sheet financial arrangements for any period during the
three years ended December 31, 2011, Accordingly, we

are not materially exposed to any financing, liquidity,
market or credit risk that could arise if we had engaged

in such relationships.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

Our discussion and analysis is based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accor-
dance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The preparation of these financial statements requi
to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and
related disclosures. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our
estimates, including those related to accounts receivable
and allowance for doubtful accounts, pension and retire-
ment benefits, self-insurance and realizabi M’y of deferred

us

tax assets. We base our estimates on historical experience
and on various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis for making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estirnates under different assumptions or conditions,

An accounting policy is deemed to be critical if it requires
an accounting estimate to be made based on assumptions
about matters that are highly uncertain at the time the
estimate is made, and if different estimates that reasonably
could have been used or changes in the accounting estimate
that are reasonably likely to occur could materially change
the financial statements.

We believe the following critical accounting policies reflect
our more significant estimates and assumptions used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statements:

Accounts Recefvable. We are required to estimate the
rability of our accounts receivable. We provide an
af.k)*vvam:,ﬁ tor deubtful accounts using amethod that
considers the balances in problem and delinquent catego-
ries, historical write-offs and judgment. Delinquent
accounts are generally written off automatically after the
passage of nine months without receiving-a full scheduled
monthly payment. Accounts are written off sooner in
the event of a discharged bankruptey orother circum-
stances that make further collections unlikely. We assess
the adequacy of the allowance at the end of each quarter.

The year end 2010 allowance was $0.7 million or 4.6% of
total accounts receivable. Write offs, net of recoveries for
2011 were $0.3 million, a significant improvement from the
higher levels of $0.7 million for 2010 and $1.7 million for
2009 as the recession eased. The total dollar amount and
severity of delinquencies also improved during 2011. The
methodology we use to determine an adequate allowance is
applied consistently to ending accounts receivable balances
and is based on historical trends and the specific delinquen-
cies and status of accounts as of the balance sheet date.
These improvements impacted the calculation for 2011,
such that the $0.5 million ending allowance was only 4.2%
of total accounts receivable, a 9% reduction from the 4.6%

percentage at the prior vear end.

While our custorner base is large and geographically

ciigpemeci the economic conditions affecting our target

ustomers could result in higher than expected defaults,

and therefore the need to revise estimates for bad debts,

A one-percentage-point increase in the delinguency

rate assumption would impact 2011 expense by approxi-

mately $34,000, a 20.4% change. We believe that the

allowarnice for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2011

is reasonable in light of portfolio balance; portfolio quality,

historical charge-offs and reasonable charge-off forecasts,




Pension and Retirement benefits. Pension and other

retirement plans costs require the use of assumptions

for discount rates, investment returns, projected salary
increases and mortality rates, Management is required

to make certain critical estimates related to actuarial
assumptions used to defermine our pension expense and
related obligation. We believe the most critical assumptions
are related to (1) the discount rate used to determine the
present value of the Habilities and (2) the expected long-
term rate of return on plan assets. All of our actuarial
assumptions are reviewed annually. Changes in these
assumptions could have a material impact on the measure-
ment of our pension expense and related obligation.

At each measurement date, we determine the discount
rate by reference to rates of high quality, long-term corpo-
rate bonds that mature in a pattern similar to the future
payments we anticipate making under the plans. As

of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the weighted-average
discount rate used to compute our benefit obligation
was 4.6% and 5.45%, respectively.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is
based upon the long-term outlook of our investment
strategy as well as our historical returns and volatilities

for each asset class. We also review current levels of interest
rates and inflation to assess the reasonableness of our
long-term rates. OQur pension plan investment objective is
to ensure our plan has sufficient funds to meet its benefit
obligations when they become due. As a result, the Compa-
ny periodically revises asset allocations, where appropriate,
to improve returns and manage risk. The weighted-average
expected long-term rate of return used to calculate our net
periodic benefit cost was 7.1% in both 2011 and 2010.

While we believe that the assumptions used are appropriate,
differences between assumed and actual experience may
affect our operating results. A one-percentage-point change
in the discount rate would impact the 2011 expense for

the defined benefit pension plan by approximately
$620,000, a 156.2% change. A one-percentage-point change
in the expected return on plan assets would impact the
2011 expense for the defined benefit pension plan by
approximately $600,000, a 151.1% change. Refer to Note 10
to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information about our pension plans and
related actuarial assumptions.

Self-Insurance. We are self-insured for certain losses
related to worker’s compensation, general liability

and vehicle claims for amounts up to a deductible per
occurrence. Our reserve is developed based on historical
claims data and contains an actuarially developed incurred
but not reported component, The resulting estimate is
discounted and recorded as a liability. Qur actuarial
assurnptions and discount rates are reviewed periodically

and compared with actual claims experience and external
benchmarks to ensure appropriateness. A one-percentage-
point change in the actuarial assumption for the discount
rate would impact 2011 expense for insurance by
approximately $70,000, a 1.3% change.

Valuation Allowance of Deferred Tax Assets. Tax law
requires items to be included in the tax return at different
times than when these items are reflected in the consoli-
dated financial statements. As a result, the annual tax rate
reflected in our consolidated financial statements is dif-
ferent than that reported in our tax return. Some of these
differences are permanent, such as expenses that are not

deductible in our tax return, and some differences reverse
over time, such as depreciation expense. These timing dif-
ferences create deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary
differences between the financial reporting and tax bases

of assets and liabilities. The tax rates used to determine
deferred tax assets or liabilities are the enacted tax rates in
effect for the year and manner in which the differences are
expected to reverse.



We evaluate our ability to realize the tax benefits associ-
ated with deferred tax assets by analyzing our forecasted
taxable income using both historical and projected future
operating results, the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, taxable income in prior carryback years (if
permitted) and the availability of tax planning strategies.

A valuation allowance is required to be established un-

less we determine that it is more likely than not that the
Company will ultimately realize the tax benefit associated
with a deferred tax asset. The valuation of deferred tax

assets requires judgment in assessing the likely future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized in our

financial statements or tax returns and future profitabiliry.
Our accounting for deferred tax consequences represents
our best estimate of future events. {Jhaﬂg._‘c's w1 our current
estimates, due to unanticipated events or otherwise, could

have a material impact on our financial condition and

results of operations.

Dae to the losses in the fourth quarter of 2008, and
considering projections for 2009 we expected that in 2009
we would be in a cumulative loss position (defined as a pre-
cumulative loss for the latest three years). We recorded

a $14.7 million increase to a valuation allowance against
substantially all of our net deferred tax assets during the
fourth quarter of 2008.

During 2009 we increased the allowance by $0.7 million
and during 2010 as we returned to profitability, we reduced
the allowance by $2.0 million.

Qur profitability in the fourth quarter of 2011 was
sufficient such that we were no longer in a cumulative
loss position. The sustained improvements in our results
over the past few years and a review of other positive and
negative evidence led us to conclude that the valuation
allowance for most of our net deferred tax assets was no
longer required. Accordingly, during the fourth quam‘e*
of 2011 we released $14.1 million of our valuation allow-
ance. As of December 31, 2011 the Company's valuation

allowance on deferred tax assets was $2.6 million and is
related to state income tax credits. Current evidence does
not suggest suthcient taxable income in this state will be
erated prior to the expiration of the

1its to realize

these deferred tax benefits.

ITEM 7A, QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the potential loss arising from
adverse changes in the value of financial instruments,

The risk of loss is assessed based on the likelihood of
adverse changes in fair values, cash flows or future earnings.
In the ordinary course of business, we are exposed to
various market risks, including fluctuations in interest rates.
To manage the exposure related to this risk, we-may use
various derivative transactions. As a matter of policy, we do
not engage in derivatives trading or other speculative
activities. Moreover, we enfer into financial instruments
transactions with either major financial institutions or higl
credit-rated counterparties, thereby limiting exposure to
credit and performance-related risks.

We have exposure to floating interest rates through our
Credit Agreement. Therefore, interest expense will fluctuate
with changes in LIBOR and other benchmark rates. We do
not believe a 100 basis point change in interest rates would
have a significant adverse impact on our operating results
or financial position.



ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The report of our independent registered public accounting firm, the Consolidated Financial Statements of Havertys and the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, and the supplementary financial information called for by this Item 8, are set
forth on pages E-1 to F-19 of this report. Specific financial statements and supplementary data can be found at the pages listed

in the following index:

index
Financial Statements

Notes to Consolidat

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS
WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not Applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures, Our management
has evaluated, with the participation of our Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFQ”), the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s
“disclosure controls and procedures” (as defined in Rules

[3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended) as of the end of the period covered
by this report. Based on that evaluation, our CEO and CFO
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures
were effective for the purpose of providing reasonable
assurance that the information we must disclose in reports

that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act (1)
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and
(i1} is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s
management, including its CEO and CFO, as appropriate
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

(b) Managemeni’s Annual Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f)

of the Exchange Act. Under the supervision and with the

Page

participation of our management, including our CEO and
CFO, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of
our internal control over financial reporting based upon
the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. Based on that evaluation, our
management concluded that our internal contro} over
financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2011,

Attestation Report of the Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm. Ernst & Young LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, has audited the consoli-
dated financial statements included in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K and, as part of their audit, has issued their
report, included herein, on the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting.

(¢} Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.
During the fourth quarter of 2011, there were no changes
in our internal control over financial reporting that have
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board of Directors of
Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc.

We have audited Haverty Furniture C‘é‘;;’l‘;;?;ﬁ:ic‘ Inc’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December

31, 26011, based on criteria established in Internal Control

- Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comumission
(the COSO criteria). Haverty Farniture Companies, Inc’s
management is responsible for maintaining e
financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting included in the accompanying Manage-
ment’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s izaiex.xtal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

ctive

internal control ov

We conducted our audit in accordance with m«;
standards of the Pub ha Co

Roard (United States). Th
plan and perform the wd tto obtain r
about whether effective internal control over fina
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit

Those hrdndmd& require thai we
wsonable assurance
cial

included obtaining an understanding of internal control

gver financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material

weakness exists, testing and evaluating t ‘b« design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing

e circumstances. We believe

such other preﬁ‘med ures as

we considered necessary in th

that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a
prmexs designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
& i ¥ tal %

internal control over financial reporting includes those

policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance

of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of f%w
company; (2) provide reasonable-assurance that transac-
tions are recorded as necessary to permif preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the com-

pany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,

use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have

a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstate-
ments. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or proce-
dures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc. main-
tained, in all material respects, effective internal.control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on
the COSO criteria.

ards

We also have audited, in accordance with the stand

of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

{United States), the 2011 consolidated financial staterents
of Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc. and our report dated
March 7, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion:thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLF

Atlanta, Georgia
March 7,2012



PART I

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The following table sets forth certain information as of March 1, 2012, regarding our executive officers:

Name Paosition with the Company

aylor ’ Senior esident,

Rawson Haverty, I and Clarence H. Smith are first cousing

These officers are elected or appointed annually by the

Board of Directors for terms of one year or until their

successors are elected and qualified, subject to removal
by the Board at any time. These individuals, except for
Mr. Gallagher, have been executive officers of Havertys
for the last five years. Mr. Gallagher joined the Company

in 1988 and has served in store and regional management
i
operations in 2004, He was appointed vice president,

positions and was named assistant vice president, store
merchandising in 2005 and senior vice president,

merchandising in February 2009,

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
(the “Code”) for our directors, officers (including our
principal executive officer, principal financial and account-
ing officer) and employees. The Code is available on our
website at www.havertys.com. In the event we amend or

waive any provisions of the Code applicable to our princi-
pal executive officer or principal financial and accounting

afficer, we will disclose the sane by filing a Form 8-K.

The information contained on or connected to our Internet

website is not incorporated by reference into this Form
10-1 and should not be considered part of this or any
other report that we file or furnish to the SEC.

The remaining information called for by this item is
incorporated by reference to “Election of Directors,”
“Corporate Governance,”“Board and Committees” and
“Other Information - Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance” in our 2012 Proxy Statement,

Date assumed an
Age Executive Officer Position

ITEM 11, EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information contained in our 2012 Proxy Statement
with respect to executive compensation and transactions
under the heading “Compensation Discussion and
Analysis” is incorporated herein by reference in response
to this item.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN
BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information contained in our 2012 Proxy Statement
with respect to the ownership of common stock and
Clasgs A common stock by certain beneficial owners and
management, and with respect to our compensation plans
under which equity securities are authorized for issuance
under the headings “Cwnership of Company Stock by
Directors and Management” and “Equity Compensation
Plan Information,” is incorporated herein by reference in
response to this item.

For purposes of determining the aggregate market value
of our common stock and Class A common stock held by
non-affiliates, shares held by all directors and executive
officers have been excluded. The exclusion of such shares

is not intended to, and shall not, constitute a determination
as to which persons or entities may be “affiliates” as defined
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934




ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information contained in our 2012 Proxy Statement with respect to certain relationships, related party transactions and

o

director independence under the headings “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and “Corporate Governance -

Director Independence” is incorporated herein by reference in response to this item.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information under the heading "Audit Fees and Related Matters” in our 2012 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by

reference to this item.

PART IV

ITEM 15, EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(o) (1) Financial Statements.

(2)

o~

e

The following documents are filed as part of this report:
Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Operations - Years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity - Years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedule.

The following financial statement schedule of Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc. is filed as part

of this Report and should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements:
Schedule I - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules have been omitted because they are inapplicable or the required mformation

is included in the Conselidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

Exhibits:

Reference is made to Jtem 15(b) of this Report.

Each exhibit identified below is filed as part of this report. Exhibits not incorporated by reference to a prior
filing are designated by an “*”; all exhibits not so designated are incorporated herein by reference to a prior
filing as indicated. Exhibits designated with a “+” constitute a management contract or compensatory plan or
arrangement. Our SEC File Number is 1-14445 for all exhibits filed with the Securities Exchange Act reports.



EXHIBIT NO. EXHIBIT

edit Agreement by and among T , )
Credit %m*\*]ggg Inc,, as the Borrowers, Sunlrust Bank, as the lssuing Bank and Administrative Agent and
‘mnh U%& Robinson Humphrw ne. as Lead Arranger, dated September 1, 2011 (Exhibit 10.1 to our 2011

. ernent dated December 9, 2011, regarding Change in Control
who are not Named | s or Management Director

ecutive Offic

Lease Agreement dated July 26, 2005 Amendment No. 1 dated Noverber, 2001 and Amendment No. 2 dated
July 29, 2002 between Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc. as Tenant and John W. Rooker, LLC as Lundlord
{(Exhibit 10.1 to our 2002 Third Quarter Form 10-03). Amendment No. 3 dated July 29, 2005 and Amendment
No. 4 dated January 22, 2006 between Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc. as "Eumm, and BELFP Jackson, LLC
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors of
Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011, Qur audits also included the financial statement schedule listed
in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An auditalso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinjon.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the consolidated results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three vears in the period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the infor-
mation set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
Haverty Furniture Companies, Incs internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission and our report dated March 7, 2012 expressed an unqgualified opinion thereon.
/s! Ernst & Young LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
March 7, 2012



HAVERTY FURNITURE COMPANIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
{in thousands, except per share data) 2011 2010
ASSETS

$.-49,585

{ES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
i R R

0
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L
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of ©




HAVERTY FURNITURE COMPANIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
T R ’"‘ "W i “(;Lv n s i wv‘va\nwwr; i ) , 'un\»{q'\\Q‘r%,«‘:ww\v 7
%%&% L b WW : W@W@W
k 301,564 282,766

s

e
W :

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding:

R

Class A

mmon Stock

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




HAVERTY FURNITURE COMPANIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
{in zzmu rict ( Shares Dollars Share Daollars Shares Dallars

8271024) 5,847) {75,é§§§

{

elated to stock-based plans

S 2071 - $0.1125,

2010 - $0.095 and 2009 ~ $0.02

(2,168) (473)
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HAVERTY FURNITURE COMPANIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December 31,
{in thousands) 2011 2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES

R

. . AR N
N T CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) HNANC.iNG ACTIVITIES (3,310) 575 (1,166)

44,466 3,697

fated financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these conso



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1, DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

BUSINESS:

Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc. ("Havertys, “we,”
“our, or “us”} is a retailer of a broad line of residential
furniture in the middie to upper-middle price ranges.
We have 119 showrooms in 17 states all operated using

the Havertys name and we do not franchise our stores.
We offer inancing through an internal revolving charge

credit plan as well as a third-party finance company.
We operate in one reportable segment, home
furnishings retailing.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Havertys and its wholly-owned subsidiary. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consalidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires

ns that

management to make estimates and assumpti
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ
from those estimates,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Cash and cash equivalents includes all liquid investments
with a maturity date of less than three months when
purchased. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which
approximates fair value due to their short-term nature.

RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Our insurance carrier requires us to collateralize a portion
of our workers’ compensation obligations. We chose to
change our collateral from a letter of credit to an escrow
account during the second quarter of 2011, These funds are
investments in money market funds held by an agent. The
-ement with our carrier governing these funds is on an

iring on December 31.

INVENTORIES:
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost
is determined using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method.

PROPERTY AND EQUIFMENT:

Property and equipment are stated at cost-less accumu-
Jated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is
provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets using
the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements and
buildings under lease are amortized over the shorter of the
estimated useful life or the lease termuof the related
mortization of buildings under lease is included

asset

in depreciation expense.

Estimated useful lives for financial reporting purposes
are as follows:

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS:

Customer deposits consist of cash collections on sales

of undelivered merchandise, customer advance payments,
and deposits on credit sales for undelivered merchandise,

REVENUE RECOGMITION:

We recognize revenue from merchandise sales and
related service fees, net of sales taxes, upon delivery to
the customer. A reserve for merchandise returns and

customer allowances is estimated based onour historical

returns and allowance experience and current sales levels.
We typically offer our customers an opportunity for us

to deliver their purchases and most choose this service.
Delivery fees of approximately $21,492,000; $21,854,000
and $19,236,000 were charged to customers.in 2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively, and are included in net sales. The
costs associated with deliveries are included in selling,
general and administrative expenses and were approxi-
mately $31,218,000, $30,191,000 and $30;081,000 in 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively.

Credit service charges are recognized as revenue as
assessed to customers aceording to contract terms. The
costs associated with credit approval, account servicing
ctions are included in selling, general and
administrative expenses.

and coli

COST OF GOODS SOLD:
Our cost of goods sold includes the direct costs of products
sold, warehouse handling and transportation costs.



SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES:
Our selling, general and administrative ("SG&A”) expenses
are comprised of advertising, selling, occupancy, delivery
and administrative costs as well as certain warehouse ex-
penses. The costs associated with our purchasing, warehous
delivery and other distribution costs included in SG&A
expense were approximately $62,857,000, $60,253,000
1d $57,962,000 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

ing

oy

DEFERRED ESCALATING MINIMUM RENT

AND LEASE INCENTIVES:

Certain of our operating leases contain predetermined
fixed escalations of the minimum rentals during the term
of the lease. For these leases, we recognize the related rental
expense on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease,
beginning with the point at which we obtain control and
possession of the leased properties, and record the dif-
ference between the amounts charged to operations and
amounts paid as "Accrued labilities” The liability for de-
ferred escalating minimum rent approximated $10,946,000
and $11,387,000 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respec-
tively. Any lease incentives we receive are deferred and
subsequently amortized over a straight-line basis over

the life of the lease as a reduction of rent expense. The
iiabilitv for lease incentives approximated $1,456,000 and
$1,776,000 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

ADVERTISING EXPENSE:

Advertising costs, which include television, radio, newspa-
per and other media advertising, are expensed upon first
showing. The total amount of prepaid advertising costs
included in other current assets was approximately
$1,027,000 and $442,000 at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. We incurred approximately $41,591,000,
$41,012,000 and $38,223,000 in advertising expense
during 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively,

INTEREST EXPENSE, NET:

Interest expense is comprised of amounts incurred related
to our debt and lease obligations recorded on our balance
sheet, net of minor interest income.

OTHER INCOME, NET:
Other income, net includes

any gains or losses on sales
of property and equipment and miscellaneous income or

expense items outside of core operations. Net (losses) gains
from the sales of property and equipment were approxi-
mately $(94,000), $1,653,000 and $21,000 in 2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively.

SELF-INSURANCE:

We are self-insured, for amounts up to a deductible per
occurrence, for losses related to general Hability, workers
compensation and vehicle claims. The expected ultimate
cost for claims incurred as of the balance sheet date is
discounted and is recognized as a Hability. The expected
ultimate cost of claims is estimated based upon analysis
of historical data and actuarial estimates. The reserve for
self-insurance is included in accrued labilities and other
liabilities and totaled $5,243,000 and $5,571,000 at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

The fair values of our cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and customer deposits approximate their carrying
amounts due to their short-term nature, The assets that are
related to our self-directed, non-qualified deferred compen-
sation plans for certain executives and employees are valued
using guoted market prices, a Level 1 valuation tcdmiquﬁ.
The assets totaled approximately $1,450,000 and $1,711,000
at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively and are
s of the same

included in other assets. The related liability

amount is included in other Habilities.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS:

We review long-Hived assets for impairment when circun-
stances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. We evaluate long-lived assets for impairment at
the individual property or store level, which is the lowest
level at which individual cash flows can be identified. For
stores with two consecutive vears of negative net contribu-
tion, we perform an impairment analysis. When evaluating
these assets for potential impairment, we first compare the

carrying amount of the asset to the store’s estimated future
cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges).

If the estimated future cash flows are less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impalrment loss caleulation is
prepared. The impairment loss calculation compares the
carrying amount of the asset to the store’s assets estimated
fair value, which is determined on the basis of fair value

for similar assets or future cash flows (discounted and
with interest charges). If required, an impairmsﬁm loss

is recorded in

&A expense for the difference in the
asset’s carrying value and the asset’s estimated fair value.
An impairment foss of $412,000 was recorded in 2009.

EARMINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE:

We report our earnings (loss) per share using the two
class method. The income (loss) per share for each class

of common stock is caleudated assuming 100% of our



earnings (loss) are distributed as dividends to each class
of common stock based on their contractual rights. See
Note 12 for the computational components of basic
and diluted earnings per share.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

The components of accumulated other comprehensive
income, net of income taxes, were comprised primarily
of unrecognized pension lability adjustments totaling
approximately $24,879,000 and $19,110,000 at December
31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued guidance that eliminates the current option to report
other comprehensive income and its components in the
statement of stockholders” equity, Companies can elect to
present items of net income and other comprehensive
income in one continuous statement or in two separate,
but consecutive statements. There are no changes to the
accounting for items within comprehensive income. The
adoption of the guidance impacts presentation and will

not affect our financial condition. The new presentation
requirements are effective for annual and interim reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2011,

NOTE 2, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

Amounts financed under our in-house credit programs
were, as a percent of net sales, approximately 5.6% in
2011, 6.1% in 2010 and 6.2% in 2009, The credit programs
selected most often by our customers is “12 months no
interest with equal monthly payments” The terms of the
other programs vary as to payment terms (30 days to two
vears) and interest rates (0% to 21%). The receivables are
collateralized by the merchandise sold.

Accounts receivable balances resulting from certain credit
promotions have scheduled payment amounts which
extend beyond one year. These receivable balances have
been historically collected earlier than the scheduled
dates. The amounts due per the scheduled payment dates
approximate as follows: $11,698,000 in 2012, $674,000 in
2013, $43,000 in 2014 and $10,000 in 2015 for receivables
outstanding at December 31, 201 1.

Accounts receivable are shown net of the allowance for
doubtful accounts of approximately $525.000 and $700,000
al December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. We pirovide

an allowance utilizing a methodology which considers the
balances in problem and delinquent categories of accounts,
historical write-offs, existing economic conditions and
management judgment, We assess the adequacy of the

h quarter. Interest

allowance account at the end of eac

assessments are continued on past-due accounts but no

“interest on interest” is recorded. Delinquent accounts are
generally written off automatically after the passiage of
nine months without receiving a full scheduled monthly
payment. Accounts are written off sooner in-the event of
a discharged bankruptey or other circumstances that
make further collections unlikely.

We believe that the carrying value of existing customer
receivables, net of allowances, approximates fair value
because of their short average maturity, Concentrations
of credit risk with respect to customer receivables are
limited due to the large number of customers comprising
our account base and their dispersion across 17 states.

NOTE 3, INVENTORIES:

Inventories are measured using the last-in, first-out (LIFO)
method of valuation because it results in a better matching
of current costs and revenues. The excess of current costs
over our carrying value of inventories was approximately
$18,110,000 and $17,860,000 at December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively. The use of the LIFOQ valuation method
as compared to the FIFO method had & negative impact on

our cost of goods soid of approximately §250,000 in 2011
and $1,504,000 in 2010 and a positive impact-of $1,134,000
in 2009, During 2011, 2010 and 2009, inventory guantities
were recuced in one or both pool categories we use in our
methodology resulting in liquidations of LIFQ dnventory
quantities carried at lower costs prevailing in prior vears

as compared with the cost of current vear purchases, The

impact amounts) during 2011 decreased cast of goods sold
by approximately $211,000 or $0.01 per diluted share of
common stock and $391,000 or $0.02 during 2010, We
believe this information is meaningful to the users of these
consolidated financial statements for analyzing the effects
of price changes, better understanding the financial

position of the Company and for comparing such effects
with other companies.



NOTE 4, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Property and equipment are summarized as follows:

2011 2010

G

Buildings and improve

j&%? S I : wom g,‘wc{%}gwg
1%’% - ﬁ@gw D

7 Property and equipment, net $179,333 $175,511

NOTE 5, CREDIT ARRANGEMENT:

In September 2011 Havertys entered into an Amended
and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”)
with a bank. The Credit Agreement amends and restates
the credit agreement governing the Company’s existing
revolving credit facility to reduce the aggregate commit-
ments under the facility to $50.0 million from $60.0
million, extend the maturity date to September 1, 2016
from December 22, 2011, lower the commitment fees

on unused amounts, reduce the applicable margin for
interest rates on borrowings and modify certain of

the covenants. The Credit Agreement provides for an
aggregate availability for letters of credit of $20.0 million.

The $50.0 million revolving credit facility is secured by
inventory, accounts recetvable, cash and certain other
personal property. Our Credit Agreement includes negative
covenants that limit our ability to, among other things (a)
incur, assume or permit to exist additional indebtedness or
guarantees; (b) incur liens and engage in sale leaseback
transactions or real estate sales in excess of $100.0 million;
(c) pay dividends or redeem or repurchase capital stock;

{d) engage in certain transactions with affiliates; and (e)
alter the business that the Company conducts.

Availability fluctuates under a borrowing base caleulation
and is reduced by outstanding letters of credit. The borrow-
6.6 million and there were no outstanding

ing base was §
letters of credit at December 31, 2011, Amounts available

are based on the lesser of the borrowing base or the

$50.0 million line amount and reduced by $6.2 million
since a fixed charge coverage ratio test was not met for

the immediately preceding twelve months, resulting in

a net availability of $43.8 million. There were no borrowed
amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement at
December 31, 2011 and we are in compliance with its
terms and there exists no default or event of default.

NOTE 6, ACCRUED LIABILITIES
AND OTHER LIABILITIES:

Accrued liabilities and other liabilities consist of the
following:
i thousands) 2011 2010

Accrued liabilities:

Taxes other than income

and withholding 8,820
1 i “WW%% " ’%w,‘,;gyvypm/ W»\;‘w&‘}‘y?, v?x ‘%@wﬂ» i s
7%%&%% ﬁw‘?‘;(ﬂ/w@m@ é%%m%f !f: e 8»4

9,607

s

NOTE 7, INCOME TAXES:

Income tax expense (benefit) consists of the following:

9
b

Fed




We account for income taxes under the provisions of Accounting Sm whards Codification Topic 740, Income Taxes. In 2009,
the Company had a loss from continuing operations but income from other comprehensive income which required us to
consider all income sources, including other comprehensive ii"(;‘{)i'ﬂt‘f, in determining the amount of tax benefit allocated to
continuing operations. Accordingly, for the year ended December 31, 2009, we recorded an income tax benefit of $1,229,000
and an income tax charge of $1,507,000 in other comprehensive income, Qur overall tax provision was not impacted

by this allocation.

The differences between income tax expense in the a .<:‘x:mnp;m\f 1g Consolidated Financial Statements and the amount

5

computed by applying the statutory Federal income tax rate are as follows:

«,,,w
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Qur 2011 expense includes a $717,000 impact of the change Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities which are

in treatment of ports credits by the state of Georgia. These netted against each other as.are non-current

edits were almost completely reserved in our valuation deferred tax assets and non-current deferred tax liabilities
S8

relate to each tax-paving componerit for presenta-
paymg p £

current are

or
.
al

dlowance as are the remaining revised credits. as the
tion on the consolidated balance sheets. These groupings

Deferved income taxes retlect the net tax effects of tempo- are detailed in the following table:
rar erences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts fin 1 2011 2010

used for income tax purposes. The amounts in the following

table are grouped based on broad categories of items that

- § [
generate the deferred tax assets and liabilities, Lurrent e R (9,107)
e i \\“WW\ %ﬁ %% %l&%ﬁ%, i NiN
) .\,»,l» i w BRI nf?l AN w

{in thousands) 2011 2010 (7,052)

10,435

We review our deferred tax assets to determine the need
for a valuation allowance based on evidene? to conclude
that it is more-likely-than-not they will be realized.

During the fourth quarter of 2008, based on our opera

ting

loss in 2008 and projected loss in 2009, we determined

our vahuation allowance should be increased $14,723,000.
Accordingly, we recorded an $8,182,000 charge to income
tax expense and, for the portion of the allowance increase
related to our pension plan, a $6,541,000 charge to accurti-
Jated other comprehensive loss, During 2009 we increased




the allowance by $682,000. The evaluation during 2010
resulted in the release of $2,014,000 from the valuation
allowance, of which $3,133,000 reduced income tax expense
and $1,119,000 was charged to accumulated other compre-
hensive loss for the portion related o our pension plan.

Our profitability in the fourth quarter of 2011 was sufficient
such that we were no longer in a cumulative loss position.
The sustained improvements in our results since mid-2009
and a review of other positive and negative evidence led

us to conclude that a valuation allowance for most of our
net deferred tax assets is no longer required. Accordingly,
during the fourth quarter of 2011 we released $14.1 million
of our valuation allowdnce. As of December 31, 2{}x I the
Company’s valuation allowance on deferred tax assets

was $2.6 million and is related to state income tax credits.
Current evidence does not suggest sufficient taxable income
will be generated in this state prior to the expiration of

the credits to realize these deferred tax benefits.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction
and various state and local jurisdictions. Wi th res spect

to U.S, federal, state and local jurisdictions, with limited
exceptions, we are no longer subject to income tax

audits for years before 2008. When we filed our federal
claims for carrybacks and amended returns in 2010,

the 2003 and subsequent tax years became subject

to limited examination.

Uncertain Tax Positions: A reconciliation of the
beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax
benefits is as follows:

2011 2010 2009

Balance at December 31 %783 $785 $ 785

The total amount of unr cu};ﬁuc d tax benefits that,

if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate as of
December 31, 2011 was approximately $698,000. We had
approximately $285,000 and $232,000 of accrued interest
and penalties at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Potential interest and penalties related to unrecognized
tax benefits are recognized as a component of income tax
expense. We have ongoing federal and state audits and
once setthed we anticipate a reduction in unrecognized
benefits during 2012 that will affect the effective tax rate
by approximately $565,000.

NOTE 8, LONG-TERM DEBT
AND LEASE OBLIGATIONS:

Long-term debt and lease obligations are summarized
as follows

011 2010

net book values of appro

December 31, 2011

five years mbseqm,m to ermbu 3 ), . ;md thereafter
approximate as follows: 2012 -~ $762,000; 7()1’% - $819,000;
2014 - $884,000, 2015 - $965,000; 2016 ~ §1,100,000 and

$8,516,000 thereafter. These maturities are net of imputed
interest of approximately $3,853,000 at December 31, 2011

Cash payments for interest were approximately $790,000,
$907,000 and $991,000 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

NOTE 9, STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY:

Common Stock has a preferential dividend rate of at
least 105% of the dividend paid on Class A Common Stock.
Class A Common Stock has greater voting rights which
ection of 75%

include: voting as a separate class for the e
of the total number of directors and on all other matters
subject to shareholder vote, each share of Class A Common
Stock has ten votes and votes with the Common Stock as a
single class. Class A Common Stock is convertible at the
holder’s option at any time into Common Stock on a
1-for-1 basis; Common Stock is not convertible into

Class A Common Stock.

NOTE 10, BENEFIT PLANS:

We have a defined benefit pension plan (the “pension
plan”) covering substantially all employees hired on or
before December 31, 2005, 11
to any employees hired after that date

based on years of service and the unpmyce’s final average

he pem%(m plan was closed
The benefits are

compensation. Effective January 1, 2007, there are no new

benefits earned under the pension plan for additional vears
of service after December 31, 2006. All current participants
in the pension plan keep any and all benefits that they had

accrued up until December 31, 2006.



We also have a non-qualified, non-contributory supplemental executive retirement plan (the “SERP”) for employees whose
retirement benefits are reduced due to their annual compensation levels. The SERP provides annual benefits amounting to 55%
of final average earnings less benefits payable from our pension plan and Social Security benefits. The SERP limits the total
amount of annual retirement benefits that may be paid to a participant in the SERP from all sources (Retirement Plan; Social
Security and the SERP) to $125,000. The SERP is not funded so we pay benefits directly to participants.

¥

The following table summarizes information about our pension plan and SERP,
Pension Plan ~ SERP

2011 2010 201
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Arpounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:

___Pension Plan SERP
201 2010

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss consist of:

Pension Plan SERP
(In th )u)mvds)w ‘ 2010

Net pension cost included the following components:

Fension Plan ) SERP
201 2009

Net pension costs - ' C§.397  $708 $ 1,559 $604 $581 $521

The estimated amount that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic cost in 2012 is
approximately $1,905,000 for the pension plan and $265,000 for the SERP.




ASSUMPTIONS

We use a measurement date of December 31 for our
pension and other benefit plan. Weighted-average
assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at
December 31 are as follows:

2011 2010

of compensation increase

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine
net periodic benefit cost for years ended December 31
are as follows:

201

CASH FLOWS

The minimum funding requirements to the pension
plan in 2011 and 2012 are $1,900,000. We contributed
$8,000,000 to the pension plan in 2011 and expect to
contribute $3,000,000 in 2012. The following schedule

outlines the expected benefit payments (in thousands):

Pension Plan

m, o w ‘w/ w,/ﬁ%
1,966
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PLAN ASSETS

The Board of Director’s Executive Compensation and
Employee Benefits Committee (the “Compensation
Committee”) is responsible for administering our pension
plan. The primary investment objective of the pension
plan is to ensure, over its long-term life, an adequate pool
of assets to support the benefit obligations to participants,
retirees and beneficiaries. An important secondary
objective is to be able to improve the pension plan’s funded
status which reduces employer contributions. In meeting
these objectives, the Compensation Committee seeks to
achieve a high level of investment return consistent with
a prudent level of portfolio risks.

Factors such as asset class allocations, long-term rates of
return (expected and actual), and results of periodic asset
liability modeling studies are considered when constructing
the long-term rate of return assumptions for our pension
plan. While historical rates of return are an important
factor in the analysis, we also take into consideration data
points from other external sources.

The assets of the plan, excluding the Company’s stock, are
being invested according to the following asset allocation
guidelines, established to reflect the growth expectations
and risk tolerance of the Compensation Committee. The
Company’s stock has a target weight of 5% of total plan
assets with a tactical range of zero to 10%.

trategic Target Tactical Range

Security Class

1 \mw B
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Our pension plan assets are valued based on observable inputs obtained from independent sources. Most of the-assets are held
in audited institutional mutual funds and collective trusts, Since the net asset values of these funds are not quoted on actively
traded markets, they are classified in a Level 2 valuation category. Some of the hold ing% in these funds are vatued using quoted
market prices for similar instruments in active markets, a Level 2 valuation technique. The remaining assets are valued using
quoted market prices, a Level 1 valuation technique. The fair values by asset category are as follows (in thousands):

Fair \/aiuev Measurememt&
‘ December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Total Level 1 Leve Total Level 1

o i nwu T
Long DisoNA
e &

Long Duration Passiv

ost equity index {

fund im yrities, corporate bonds, and mortgage and

0 of nor-invest

grade honds, non-U.S. dollar denominated bonds, and

SUSC DY IS

(¢} This category oy primarily in grade bonds, incuding governmeant
Y £ Y Y G4

:curities, corporate bonds, and mortgage and

f securities, among otners.

egoty invests primarily in U.S. dollar-denominated, investment grad rate bonds as well as U.S. Treasury bonds.

OTHER PLANS

We have an employee savings/retirement (401(k)) plan to which substantially all our mnployees may contribute. We
match employee contributions 100% of the first 1% of eligible pay and 50% of the next 5% contributed by participants.
We expensed matching employer contributions of approximately $2,666,000, $2,578,000 and $2,293,000 in 2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively.

We offer no post-retirement benefits other than the plans discussed above and no significant post-employment benefits.




NOTE 11, STOCK BASED COMPENSATION PLANS:

We have options and awards outstanding for Common Stock under two stock-based employee compensation plans, the 2004

Long Term Incentive Plan (the “2004 LTIP Plan”) and the 1998 Stock Option Plan (the “1998 Plan™). As of December 31, 2011,
1,033,771 shares were available for awards and options under the 2004 LTIP Plan. No new awards may be granted under

the 1998 Plan.

The following table sunumarizes our share option and award activity during the years ended December 31, 2011,
20160 and 2609:

Stock-settled

Restricted Stock Award Appreciation Rights Options
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
A\;er&ge Average Average
Shares or Units  Award Price ights  Award Price shares  Exercise Price

Granted

‘ Exercisable at December 31, 2009 12,503 £ 917 1,508,025 £18.

o appreciation rghts exercised was approximately $49,000, $1.172,000 and $12 500

INNSiC oplions ana stock-se

n 2011, 2070 and 2008, respec

The following table summarizes information about the stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2011

Number Outstanding Weighted-Average Remaining Weighted-Average

Range of Exercise Prices and Exercisal ontractual Life (Years Exercise Price

All of the exercise prices for options outstanding at December 31, 2011 were greater than the market price of common

stock on that date.

The weighted-average fair value for the stock-settled appreciation rights granted in 2009 was $3.13 estimated at the date
of grant using a Black-Scholes pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions: risk-free interest rate

24,

of 1.4%, expected life of 5 years, expected volatility of 38.8% and expected dividend vield of 0.0%. The ag;s;rwaw intrinsic
7,000

value of vested and outstanding stock-settled appreciation rights at December 31, 2011 was approximately §1

and $304,000, respectively.



The total fair value of restricted common stock shares that vested in 2011, 2010 and 2009 was approximately $1,251.000,
$3,099,000 and $1,321,000, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of outstanding restricted common stock grants was
$4,744.,000 at December 31, 2011

Grants of restricted common stock and stock-settled appreciation rights are made to certain officers and key employees
under the 2004 LTIP Plan. The restrictions on the awards generally lapse annually, primarily over four year periods. The
compensation is being charged to selling, general and administrative expense over the respective grants’ vesting periods,
primarily on a straight-line basis, and was approximately $2,060,000, $1,716,000 and $1,668,000 in 2011, 2010-and 2009,
respectively. As of December 31, 2011, the total com
$3,568,000 and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.5 vears.

pensation cost related to unvested equity awards was approximately

NOTE 12, EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE:

The following is a reconciliation of the income (loss) and number of shares used in calculating the diluted earnings (loss)
per share for Common Stock and Class A Common Stock (amounts in thousands except per share data):

201 2010 2009
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At December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, we did not include options to purchase approximately 772,000, 878,000 and 1,630,000
shares of Havertys Common Stock, respectively, in the computation of diluted earnings {loss) per common share because the

exercise prices of those options were greater than the average market price and their inclusion would have been antidilutive.




NOTE 13, COMMITMENTS:

We lease certain property and equipment under operating
leases. Initial lease terms range from 5 years to 30 years
and certain leases contain renewal options ranging from

1 to 25 years or provide for options to purchase the related
property at fair market value or at predetermined purchase
prices. The leases generally require us to pay all mainte-
nance, property taxes and insurance costs.

The following schedule outlines the future minimum lease
payments and rentals under operating leases:

Operating Leases

11 thot 5)

I minimum subl

Step rent and other lease concessions (free rent periods)
are taken into account in computing lease expense on a
straight-line basis. Lease concessions for capital improve-
ments have not been significant, but are recorded as a
reduction of expense over the term of the lease, Net rental
expense applicable to operating leases consisted of the
following for the vears ended December 31

2011

NOTE 14, SUPPLEMENTAL CASH
FLOW INFORMATION:

Income Taxes Paid and Refunds Received

We paid state and federal income taxes of approximately
$513,000, $4,531,000 and $534,000 in 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. We also received income tax refunds of ap-
proximately $1,824,000, $2,481,000 and $2,467,000 in 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively.

Non-Cash Transactions

We increased property and equipment and lease obliga-
tions recorded on our consolidated balance sheets related to
new retail stores by approximately $4,535,000 in 2011 and
$2,300,000 in 2010,



NOTE 15, SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED):

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

(in thousands, except per share data):

2011 Quarter Ended -
June 30 /Se tember 30 Dec

ember 31

. 2 £y £ - i
Class mon (0.03) (0.04)

The fourth quarter includes a benefit of $14.1 million, a $0.64 per share impact, to release reserves for the valuation
allowance on deferred tax assets.

o 2010 Quarter Ended
March 31 : ep

010 (0.03) 0.05 024

Class A Common

»

We recorded in "Other income, net” in the fourth quarter a $1.5 million gain from the sale of a warehouse closed ir a prior
year and $0.5 million related to a change in a contractual agreement.

Because of rounding and the method used in calculating per share data, the amounts and quarterly per share-data will not
necessarily add to the totals and per share data as computed for the year.




SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
HAVERTY FURNITURE COMPANIES, INC,

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Balance at Additions
beginning of charged to costs Deductions Balance at
(in thousands) period and expenses DescribeM@ end of period

Year ended D@cember‘ 31, 2011:

%j@’gvﬁ; B &;gé/s/g*f%w«
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Reserve for cancelled sales and allowan

Year ended December 31, 2010

.

Reserve for cancelled sales and allowances
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$ 8,234 $ 8244 $1,210

Year ended December 31, 2009:

sserve for cancelled sales and allowances

Allowance for doubtful accounts

ve for canceiled sales and
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Additional copies of this report, Form 10-K or
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We invite you to visit the Tavestor Information
section on our website at www.havertys.com
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